
  
 
  

  
  
Civil Service Commission 
CITY HALL COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
REGULAR AGENDA OF APRIL 27, 2026 
5:00 PM 

  
 
CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 Regular meeting minutes of March 23, 2026. 
(Action by Civil Service Commission) 

REPORTS 

Received Oath of Office for Sergeant Jacob Julio dated March 27, 2026. 

Update on Fire Lieutenant Promotional Examination. 

UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

NEW BUSINESS 

 Certify the 2026-2028 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Eligibility List. 
(Action by Civil Service Commission) 

 Certify the 2026-2028 Top 10 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Eligibility List. 
(Action by Civil Service Commission) 

 Certification of payroll by Civil Service Commission (Per Rule I, Section 3). 
(Action by Civil Service Commission) 

ADJOURNMENT 

  

• The next Civil Service Commission regular meeting is scheduled for 5:00 PM on Monday, May 
27, 2026.   

 

Page 1 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION 
MINUTES OF THE 

REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 

CALL TO ORDER 

The meeting was called to order at 5:05 PM. 

ROLL CALL 

Present were members Paul Graupmann, Amie Espinosa-Gonzalez and Cheryl Farver. 

Also present was Assistant Law Director Toni Morgan and Deputy Clerk of Council Tina Wieber. 

ELECTION OF OFFICERS 

Chairperson 

Moved by Espinosa-Gonzalez and seconded by Graupmann to nominate Cheryl Farver for the 
position of Chairperson. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 

Vice Chairperson 

Moved by Espinosa-Gonzalez and seconded by Graupmann to nominate Paul Graupmann for the 
position of Co-Chairperson. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 
Secretary 

Moved by Graupmann and seconded by Farver to nominate Amie Espinosa-Gonzalez for the 
position of Secretary. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

Regular Meeting Minutes of February 27, 2026 

Chairwoman Cheryl Farver stated that the Commission received the meeting minutes from the February 
27, 2026, meeting and asked if there were any comments, questions or corrections. 

None were given. 

Page 2 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION PAGE 2 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 
 

Moved by Farver and seconded by Espinosa-Gonzalez to approve the February 27, 2026, 
meeting minutes. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 
 
REPORTS 
 
Received Oath of Office for Police Patrolman Kyle Lashley dated March 3, 2026. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the first item under the report section was that the Commission received 
the Oath of Office for Police Patrolman Kyle Lasley, dated March 3rd, 2026. She welcomed him and 
shared her appreciation of his service to the city. 
 
Received a request for withdrawal from the Police Sergeant Promotional Examination Eligibility List 
from Detective Brandon Mundell dated March 10, 2026. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the next item was a request for withdrawal from the Police Sergeant 
Promotional Examination Eligibility List from Detective Brandon Mundell, dated March 10th, 2026. 
 
Received Oath of Office for Police Patrolman Duane Smith dated March 18, 2026. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that last the Commission had received an Oath of Office for Police Patrolman 
Duane Smith, dated March 18th, 2026. She welcomed him and thanked him for his service to the city. 
 
UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
Re-certify the 2024-2026 Police Sergeant Promotional Examination Eligibility List due to the request 
for withdrawal. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the Commission had been provided a copy of the list.  

Moved by Espinosa-Gonzalez and seconded Graupmann to re-certify 2024-2026 Police Sergeant 
Promotional Examination Eligibility List. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 
 
Re-certify the 2024-2026 Top 3 Police Sergeant Promotional Examination Eligibility List due to the 
request for withdrawal. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the Commission had been provided a copy of the list. 

Page 3 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION PAGE 3 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 
 

Moved by Espinosa-Gonzalez and seconded by Graupmann to re-certify the 2024-2026 Top 3 
Police Sergeant Promotional Examination Eligibility List due to the request for withdrawal. 

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 
 
Re-certify the 2025-2027 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Examination Eligibility List due to 
appointments. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the Commission had been provided a copy of the list. 

Moved by Graupmann and seconded by Espinosa-Gonzalez to approve the agencies for the 
upcoming Fire Promotional examinations.  

A roll call vote was taken and the motion carried. 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 
 
PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Chairwoman Farver asked if there was anyone in the audience who wished to come up to the podium and 
speak during the public comment section to please come forward and state their name. 

Firefighter Kevin Pocos introduced himself and stated that he worked for the North Ridgeville Fire 
Department. He expressed several concerns, noting that he had followed Civil Service meeting minutes 
and believed he has had issues with the Civil Service Commission in the past. He added that he had not 
yet met any of the Commission members and that they were all new to him. 

He stated that he recently read in the meeting minutes that the Commission selected an assessment and 
testing center for upcoming fire department promotional examinations. While he had questions about 
this decision, he indicated that responses were not necessary that evening but requested that they be 
addressed in the future. 

Specifically, he asked how the Commission determined which testing and assessment center to use, who 
made that recommendation, and whether the Fire Chief was involved in selecting the vendor for the 
testing and promotional process. 

Chairwoman Farver stated that she could answer that question immediately. She said that the 
Commission made an independent decision and that the Chief did not. 
 
Mr. Pocos asked if the Chief influenced it in any way. 
 
Chairwoman Farver stated that the Chief addressed the Commission. 
 

Page 4 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION PAGE 4 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 
 
Mr. Pocos explained that his questions stemmed from his experience with the 2023 promotional exam. 
He stated that, at that time, the Civil Service Commission—under the influence of the Police and Fire 
Chiefs—required candidates to achieve a minimum score of 70% on the assessment portion in order to 
pass. 

He noted that he completed the same assessment center three times, receiving scores of 85, 75, and 65. 
He stated that the final score of 65 eliminated his chances for promotion. He added that, due to past 
concerns he raised with the Civil Service Commission regarding procedural inaccuracies, he believes the 
prior process was flawed. He clarified that his concerns related to past actions and not the current 
Commission members. 

Mr. Pocos further stated that the assessment center was subjective in nature. He claimed that input was 
provided to the testing vendor regarding desired candidate qualities and attributes. In his view, the 
assessment did not objectively measure skills, knowledge, or abilities, but instead reflected evaluators’ 
subjective opinions of candidates’ personalities. He questioned the fairness and legality of a process in 
which a single evaluator’s subjective judgment could remove a candidate from consideration. 

He concluded by reiterating that these concerns were the reason he was seeking clarification on how the 
assessment and testing centers were selected. 

Chairwoman Farver asked if he wanted to know for the most recent or if he was talking about in the past. 
She stated that she was a bit confused because he referenced the past. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that he referenced the past to give context as to why he was asking about the future. 
 
Chairwoman Farver asked if he was inquiring about the most recent examination, the one that was 
coming up in the fire division. She said that that was her first meeting and it was done with an RFP or an 
RFQ and that all discussion was held in public and involved the Commission. 
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan stated that while she was new to the Commission, she was accurate. It's 
always been a public discussion. She explained that they gathered materials from a variety of places and 
would take input from the Chief and other people as well. She explained that the Commission looked at 
all the information and made the decision. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that he was questioning it because there was a lapse in meetings. He stated that they 
didn't have a meeting in January and asked if that was correct. 
  
Deputy Clerk of Council Wieber stated that that was correct. 
 
Mr. Pocos asked if the last one prior to that was in December. 
 
Deputy Clerk of Council Wieber stated that was correct. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that there was a lapse there, and he didn't see that information when he went to look 
for it, exactly how they came to that decision on who they were going to use, which was why he was 
questioning it. He stated that according to their contract, the Chief was not supposed to have any 
involvement in this. 

Page 5 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION PAGE 5 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan asked if that was based on their collective bargaining agreement. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that that was correct. 
 
Chairwoman Farver asked if he filed a grievance. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that there was no need to because every grievance he had every made …. 
 
Chairwoman Farver commented that there was his remedy. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that that was his only question.  
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan asked Mr. Pocus if there was a particular part of the collective bargaining 
agreement that he was referring to that they could look at.  
 
Mr. Pocos indicated that there was. 
 
Chairwoman Farver asked if he had a question beyond who picked it. She asked if there was anything 
else that he wanted to know. 
 
Mr. Pocos said no and that he had put in a public information request to the Assistant Law Director 
personally and had been denied, saying that it was too voluminous. 
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan stated that she had requests from Mr. Pocos in the past but did not know 
the status off the top of her head at the moment, but if he wanted to come in and discuss them, she was 
available. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that according to the current CBA… 
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan asked if he would give an Article and a Section. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that Article IV, under Management Rights, Section 4.01, 7), and to quote part of that, 
“determine the basis for selection, retention and promotion of employees to and for positions not within 
the bargaining unit established by this Agreement, consistent with applicable Civil Service Rules and 
Regulations”. So, in other words, not the bargaining unit, only the people that are not within the 
bargaining unit. 
 
Assistant Law Director Morgan stated that she would look at that and asked if there was something still 
pending regarding his public records request to let her know. 
 
Mr. Pocos stated that he would do that. 
 
ADJOURNMENT  

Moved by Farver and seconded by Espinosa-Gonzalez to adjourn the meeting.  

A voice vote was taken and the motion carried. 

Page 6 of 10



NORTH RIDGEVILLE CIVIL SERVICE COMMISSION PAGE 6 
REGULAR MEETING – TUESDAY, MARCH 23, 2026 

 Yes – 3           No – 0 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:15 PM. 

Tina Wieber 
Vice-Chairman Deputy Clerk of Council, Recording Secretary 

Monday, April 27, 2026 
Date Approved 

Page 7 of 10



Current 
Position

Date Last First ID Number # Correct Total Extra Credit Total

In
Submitted

Date
Last

Name
First

Name
Agility

ID Number
Written

# Correct
Education Education

Points
Military Military

%
Military
Points

OPATA
Points

Extra Credit
Total

Score
Total

1 2/20/2026 Hinckley Bridgette Y 83 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 88
2 3/29/2026 Grant Brent Y 83 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 88
3 2/25/2026 Garrity Jack Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 2 7 87
4 3/20/2026 McDonald Caleb Y 82 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 87
5 3/10/2026 Tackett Derek Y 85 0 N/A 0 0 0 85
6 3/15/2026 Marshall Anthony Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 85
7 3/24/2026 Middlebrooks Shayla Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 85
8 3/3/2026 Cross Douglas Y 84 0 N/A 0 0 0 84
9 3/12/2026 Chabrier Angel Y 77 X 5 N/A 0 2 7 84
10 3/28/2026 Micochero William Y 79 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 84
11 2/20/2026 Simulcik Brycen Y 77 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 82
12 2/20/2026 Shippy Patrick Y 76 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 81
13 2/23/2026 Gibson Ryan Y 81 0 N/A 0 0 0 81
14 3/24/2026 Cruz Ayden Y 75 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 80
15 3/2/2026 Casey Meghan Y 74 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 79
16 3/6/2026 Verda Ashley Y 72 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 77
17 3/19/2026 Angus Harley Y 74 0 N/A 0 0 0 74
18 2/10/2025 Horvat Zachary Y 72 0 N/A 0 0 0 72

Education Military OPOTA

 Submitted Name Agility Written Extra Credit

2026-2028 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Exam Eligibility List

I, Paul Graupmann,Vice-Chairman, acknowledge this list to be an accurate certified list as declared by the Civil Service Commission on April 27, 2026.

Vice-Chairman      Date
___________________________________________________________________

Page 8 of 10



Current 
Position

Date Last First ID Number # Correct Total Extra Credit Total

In
Submitted

Date
Last

Name
First

Name
Agility

ID Number
Written

# Correct
Education Education

Points
Military Military

%
Military
Points

OPATA
Points

Extra Credit
Total

Score
Total

1 2/20/2026 Hinckley Bridgette Y 83 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 88
2 3/29/2026 Grant Brent Y 83 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 88
3 2/25/2026 Garrity Jack Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 2 7 87
4 3/20/2026 McDonald Caleb Y 82 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 87
5 3/10/2026 Tackett Derek Y 85 0 N/A 0 0 0 85
6 3/15/2026 Marshall Anthony Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 85
7 3/24/2026 Middlebrooks Shayla Y 80 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 85
8 3/3/2026 Cross Douglas Y 84 0 N/A 0 0 0 84
9 3/12/2026 Chabrier Angel Y 77 X 5 N/A 0 2 7 84

10 3/28/2026 Micochero William Y 79 X 5 N/A 0 0 5 84

Education Military OPOTA

 Submitted Name Agility Written Extra Credit

I, Paul Graupmann,Vice-Chairman, acknowledge this list to be an accurate certified list as declared by the Civil Service Commission on April 27, 2026.

Vice-Chairman     Date
____________________________________________________________

2026-2028 Top 10 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Eligibility List 

Page 9 of 10



FINANCE DEPARTMENT 7307 Avon Belden Road 
North Ridgeville, OH 44039 

(440) 490.2086 
nridgeville.org

CIVIL SERVICE PAYROLL CERTIFICATION 

The following listed individuals are currently Civil Service Personnel whose payroll is certified 
for purposes of compliance with ORC 9.41. 

GORSKI, MATTHEW T. 
GRADISEK, GRANT E. 
HAUER, STEVEN C. 
HERBSTER, NATHAN M. 
HELLINGER, RUSSELL W. 
JEDLICKA, WILLEM M. 
JONES, RYAN P. 
JULIO, JACOB R. 
KATTLER, DUSTIN D. 
KENNEY, RICHARD R. 
KNOWLTON, RICHARD A. 
KUDUZOVIC, DAMIR 
KUDUZOVIC, KELSEY L. 
LASHLEY, KYLE J.
LEE, ANTHONY W. 
LOGAN, BRIAN R. 
MACY, VINCENT M. 
MARTIN-MAUSER, MEGHAN R. 
MASON, JEREMY D. 
MCGRAW, JOHN J. 
METZO, JOHN L. IV 
MOBLEY, JASON M. 
MUNDELL, BRANDON N. 
NEFF, AARON A. 
ODY, CHRISTOPHER S. 

ACKERMAN, RUDY J. 
ACORD, STEVEN D. 
ADAMS, BRIAN J. 
ADKISSON, SHEA E. 
BARBER, KEVIN R.
BARENS, BRIAN J. 
BELT, DAVID A.
BEMENT, JOSHUA A. 
BUESCHER, BRAD D. 
CALLICOAT, CHARLES O. 
CAMPBELL, KORY J. 
CARBONE, MARK A. 
CHASKO, CLINTON J. 
CHROSNIAK, JASON P. 
COLLINS, SPENCER J.G. 
COMINSKY, MARK D. 
COOK, STEPHEN B. 
CRAWFORD, ALLEN S. II 
CYRUS, DONALD L., JR.  
EBERLING, COLT M. 
EICHER, LOGAN H. 
ERLENBACH, CHRISTOPHER M. 
FEDERAN, CHRISTOPHER J. 
FOSTER, WILLIAM H. IV 
GASPARINI, MICHAEL J. 
GERBASI, GABRIEL D.

PANAGIOTOU, GEROGE G. 
PHILLIPS, KEVIN G. 
POCOS, KEVIN L.  
ROBERTS, BENJAMIN S. 
ROGERS, DANIEL J. 
ROTH, JOSEPH M.  
SCHMIDT, KYLE A. 
SHEAR, ALEXANDER H. 
SIEBENECK, CHAD M. 
SILVI, JUSTIN J.
SMITH, DUANE A. 
SMITH, LUKE J. 
SOURIS, CONSTANTINE J. 
STRAHINIC, KIRT A. 
TANZILLI, NOAH E. 
TOLVAY, KERRI A. 
TORRES, KIMBERLY N. 
TRAMPUSH, FRANK S. 
TRYBUS, NATHAN A. 
VAZQUEZ, OMAR 
WALTER, JACK R. 
WARNER, CHAD C.  
WILKSHIRE, IAN H.  
YOUNG, RANDALL S. 
ZINGALE, JOHN J. 

The signature of Civil Service Commission member below shall certify that each person listed above has 
been appointed and is employed pursuant to Ohio Revised Code Chapter 124.   

This form shall be updated and re-certified any time the list changes. 

(Name) (Date)  

Page 10 of 10

dstanchak
Cross-Out


	 CALL TO ORDER
	 ROLL CALL
	 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	 Regular meeting minutes of March 23, 2026.
	3_23_2026_CSC_minutes


	 REPORTS
	 Received Oath of Office for Sergeant Jacob Julio d
	 Update on Fire Lieutenant Promotional Examination.

	 UNFINISHED BUSINESS
	 NEW BUSINESS
	 Certify the 2026-2028 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entran
	2026-2028 Patrol Officer Step 1 Entrance Eligibility List
	2026 Applicants


	 Certify the 2026-2028 Top 10 Patrol Officer Step 1
	2026-2028 Top 10 Patrol Officer Step 1
	2026 Top 10


	 Certification of payroll by Civil Service Commissi
	4.22.26 Civil Service Payroll Cert


	 ADJOURNMENT



